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)
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)




)
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)

DECISION
Richard L. Puffer violated 49 CFR § 382.215 on November 6, 2006, when he transported cattle from Missouri to Nebraska in his employer’s 1993 Freightliner after his urine tested positive for marijuana.
Procedure

On July 31, 2008, the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”) filed a complaint.  On August 18, 2008, Puffer was served with our notice of complaint/notice of hearing and a copy of the complaint.  Puffer did not respond to the complaint.  On December 15, 2008, the MHTC filed a motion for summary determination, which requests a favorable decision without a hearing based on certified records.  On December 30, 2008, Puffer replied to the motion during a telephone conference that we held with Puffer and David E. Woodside, counsel for the MHTC.  
We may decide the case in favor of the MHTC without a hearing if the MHTC establishes facts that entitle it to such a decision and Puffer does not genuinely dispute such facts.
  The MHTC must establish facts by providing admissible evidence.
  The MHTC provided admissible evidence in the form of certified copies of its records.
  Puffer raised no dispute as to the facts.  
Findings of Fact

1.
Between June 1, 1999, and November 16, 2006, Daniel Froman, a motor carrier, regularly employed Puffer as a driver of motor vehicles to transport property on public highways from within Missouri to points outside of Missouri.
2.
On October 20, 2006, Puffer provided his urine specimen for a random controlled substances test.
  

3.
On October 23, 2006, the laboratory reported that Puffer’s urine specimen tested positive for cannabinoid, a chemical constituent of marijuana.

4.
Marijuana is a controlled substance.

5.
On October 23, 2006, Puffer's employer was notified that Puffer had tested positive for cannabinoid.  

6.
Sometime before November 6, 2006, the employer notified Puffer that he had tested positive for cannabinoid.
7.
On November 6, 2006, Puffer followed his employer’s directive to operate his employer’s 1993 Freightliner, a truck-tractor, with a gross vehicle weight rating and licensed 
gross weight of 80,000 pounds upon public highways to transport livestock from Gallatin, Missouri, to St. Paul, Nebraska.  
Conclusions of Law

We have jurisdiction to hear the MHTC’s complaint.
  The MHTC has the authority to enforce Parts 350 to 399 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations.
  The MHTC must show by clear and satisfactory evidence that Puffer violated the law.

The MHTC contends that Puffer violated 49 CFR § 382.215, which provides:

No driver shall report for duty, remain on duty or perform a safety-sensitive function, if the driver tests positive or has adulterated or substituted a test specimen for controlled substances. . . .
This regulation applies “to every person and to all employers of such persons who operate a commercial motor vehicle in commerce in any State[.]”
  

49 CFR § 382.107 provides:

Commerce means:
(1) Any trade, traffic or transportation within the jurisdiction of the United States between a place in a State and a place outside of such State, including a place outside of the United States;
*   *   *

Commercial motor vehicle means a motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used in commerce to transport passengers or property if the vehicle—

(1) Has a gross combination weight rating of 11,794 or more kilograms (26,001 or more pounds) inclusive of a towed unit with a gross vehicle weight rating of more than 4,536 kilograms (10,000 pounds); or
(2) Has a gross vehicle weight rating of 11,794 or more kilograms (26,001 or more pounds)[.]
*   *   *

Driver means any person who operates a commercial motor vehicle.  This includes, but is not limited to:  Full time, regularly employed drivers; casual, intermittent or occasional drivers; leased drivers and independent owner-operator contractors.
*   *   *

Performing (a safety-sensitive function) means a driver is considered to be performing a safety-sensitive function during any period in which he or she is actually performing, ready to perform, or immediately available to perform any safety-sensitive functions.
*   *   *

Safety-sensitive function means all time from the time a driver begins to work or is required to be in readiness to work until the time he/she is relieved from work and all responsibility for performing work.  Safety-sensitive functions shall include:
*   *   *

( 3) All time spent at the driving controls of a commercial motor vehicle in operation[.]
49 CFR § 382.107 also provides:  “Controlled substances mean those substances identified in Sec. 40.85 of this title.”  49 CFR § 40.85 provides: 

As a laboratory, you must test for the following five drugs or classes of drugs in a DOT drug test. You must not test “DOT specimens” for any other drugs. 
(a) Marijuana metabolites. 
A cannabinoid is “any of various chemical constituents (as THC or cannabinol) of cannabis or marijuana.”


The 1993 Freightliner was a “commercial motor vehicle” because (1) it was used to transport property in commerce between Gallatin, Missouri, and St. Paul, Nebraska, and (2) it 
had a gross vehicle weight rating of 80,000 pounds.  Puffer was a “driver” because Froman employed Puffer to operate his commercial motor vehicles, including the 1993 Freightliner.  Puffer “performed” a “safety-sensitive function” because he reported for duty and actually was at the controls while operating a commercial motor vehicle.  Puffer tested positive for a controlled substance because his urine specimen tested positive for cannabinoid, which is a constituent of marijuana. Puffer performed a safety-sensitive function after he tested positive for a controlled substance because the positive urine specimen was taken on October 20, 2006, and Puffer operated the 1993 Freightliner on November 6, 2006.


We conclude that Puffer violated 49 CFR § 382.215 on November 6, 2006, when he operated the 1993 Freightliner to transport cattle on public highways from Gallatin, Missouri, to St. Paul, Nebraska, after he had tested positive for marijuana.

During the phone conference, Puffer agreed to the facts that establish his violation of 
49 CFR § 382.215.  By way of explanation, he testified:

Well, I did drive the truck.  I told Danny that I had tested positive, I cannot drive it; but he insisted I take the load of cows anyway since I knew the farmer.  I'd been hauling cows to his house for a couple of years.  And he needed me to, and he just had me take them even though I did object.  But I ended up taking them 

anyway, and that's basically it.  
49 CFR § 382.101 explains the public safety purpose of § 382.215:

The purpose of this part is to establish programs designed to help prevent accidents and injuries resulting from the misuse of alcohol or use of controlled substances by drivers of commercial motor vehicles.
49 CFR § 382.215 places a responsibility on the driver not to drive after testing positive for a controlled substance.  Because of the public safety purpose of the regulation, it provides no defense for the driver who drove because the employer insisted on it.


Puffer also testified:

Q
And did you, in fact, use marijuana at some time 

prior to these tests?
A
I was in a room that it was being used.  I was at a friend of mine's house who had burned his arms in a hot oil incident, and he was using it to control the pain, and I was visiting one day while he was using it.
Q
Okay.  But you don't deny that the tests that came back with the positive results for marijuana were accurately conducted tests; is that correct?
A
That's correct.[
]
The violation of 49 CFR § 382.215 does not depend on how the driver’s urine became positive.  The violation is for performing a safety-sensitive function after a driver simply “tests positive.”  So whether Puffer's urine was positive because he used marijuana or inhaled second-hand marijuana smoke does not matter in determining whether he violated 49 CFR § 382.215.
Summary

We grant the motion for summary determination and find that Puffer violated 49 CFR 
§ 382.215.  We cancel the hearing.

SO ORDERED on January 16, 2009.


________________________________



JOHN J. KOPP       


Commissioner
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